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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 (except for the Woburn Contributory Retirement System which is as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2016), and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2017 (except for the Woburn
Contributory Retirement System which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016), and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 27, 2018, on
our consideration of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Woburn, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

/Wa .L%% cel

March 27, 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts (City), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2017. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented in this report. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are
expressed in whole dollars.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative standard setting body that provides
guidance on how to prepare financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Users of these financial statements (such as investors and rating agencies) rely on the GASB fo
establish consistent reporting standards for alt governments in the United States. This consistent application is the
only way users (including citizens, the media, legislators and others) can assess the financial condition of one
government compared to others.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Woburn exceeded the liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent year by $138.7 million (net position).

¢ Atthe close of the current year, the City's general fund reported an ending fund balance of $48.1 million.
Total fund balance represents 34% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt (short-term and long-term combined) increased by $2.7 million during the year.

» The City's net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligation increased by $8.9 million and totaled
$65.9 million at year-end.

e The City's net pension liability and deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources increased by $6.4 million and
totaled $65.1 million at year-end.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Woburn’s basic financial
statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The government-wide financial
statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the City as a whole. The fund financial
statements focus on the individual components of the City government, reporting the City’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements. Both presentations (government-wide and fund) allow the user to
address relevant questions, broaden the basis of comparison and enhance the City’s accountability. This report
also contains other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the
most recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave).

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 4 Management’s Discussion and Analysis



Both of the government-wide financial staterents distinguish functions that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, human services, culture and
recreation, and interest. The business-type activities include the activities of water and sewer operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Woburn itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public employee retirement system. Financial information for this
component unit is reported separately within the fiduciary fund statements.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Woburn adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The City accounts for its water and sewer activities as an enterprise fund.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’'s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary

funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The

City of Woburn'’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $138.7 million at the close of 2017.
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Net position of $189 million reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements, buildings,
vehicles, machinery and equipment, building improvements, and infrastructure) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital assets is
reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the governmental net position, $15.5 million, represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The balance of unrestricted net position has a year-end deficit of
$65.8 million. The primary reason for this deficit balance is the recognition of other postemployment benefit and
net pension liabilities totaling $65.9 million and $78.9 million, respectively.

At the end of the current year, the City of Woburn is able to report positive balances in two out of three categories
of net position for the governmental activities and for the City as a whole. The business-type activities report
positive balances in the two applicable categories of net position.

The governmental and business-type activities of the City are presented below.

Governmental Activities

The City of Woburn's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources for governmental activities by $95.1 million at the close of 2017.

2017 2016
Assets:
Current assets... i % BD483222 § 82,093,057
Noncurrent assets (excludlng capltal) ................................... 1,123,293 1,101,582
Capital assets not being depreciated................c....ccoooeninn 38,639,246 24,615,852
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...................... 159,462,467 160,474,091
TOtal ASSOLS. . eurnrirnrnrinenrennrerarnresisarsmsmnssnsasasscasrssasannans 285,708,228 268,284,582
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions.................ooii 14,843,000 19,621,000
Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt).............coooo 8,627,392 5,551,753
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)...........oooiiiiiine. 148,089,160 138,900,516
CUMENE A, .. e e e e e e e 8,122,600 10,376,754
NonCUITENE debt.. ..o e e e e 39,362,400 33,815,000
Total HabilitieS....c..cvrveerrarernenrarerrnseraricarsnsesssninasnranasons 204,201,552 188,644,023
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Deferred inflows related to pensions.............cocoovv i 1,253,000 15,000
Net Position:
Net investment in capital @ssets............coooviiiiiiniiii i 157,023,141 150,259,123
RESEICE. ettt et e e e e e 15,475,911 14,762,350
UNTEStICIEA. ..o eee e et e e e e et e e e (77,402,376) (65,774,914)
Total net PoOSItion........cceuieiiiieenininc s e $ 95,096,676 $ 99,246,559
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2017 2016

Program Revenues:

Charges for SEIVICES... ....ovvivie i e e e e e 3 6,753,786 $ 7,445,024
Operating grants and contributions..................... 29,544,035 25,484,894
Capital grants and contributions...............ccocon 6,635,343 6,480,675

General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,

net of tax refunds payable................ccei 96,970,971 97,032,118
TAX NS e ee e e e e e 743,822 192,683
Motor vehicle XCISE taXeS........ovviie i i e e 7,101,091 6,679,034
HOtE/MOEI 18X.... ..o e s e e e et e e e 3,182,058 3,164,999
MEAIS FAX. ..ot e 1,021,682 1,013,979
Penalties and interest on taxes..........cooev e e 504,770 581,885
Nonrestricted grants............oooooi i 6,172,440 5,694,142
Unrestricted investment income..........cociieiiiiiicieie e 1,903,242 1,607,113
MISCEIlaNEOUS. .. ... e e e e e 37,116 103,633
Total FOVENUES...cveverierirerictariee s s rnsasasasasarnsasnsasasanen 160,570,356 155,480,179
Expenses:
General QOVEIMMENt. .. ... ... iii it e e eer e ee e 7,151,619 6,086,108
PUblic safety... ..o 33,094,560 32,903,354
e [0 Tez= 1 Lo TSR 105,597,983 99,511,247
PUBNIC WOTKS.....co et e e e e 13,467,850 11,305,559
HUM AN SBIVICES. ..ottt ittt e et s e e e ee ce e 1,862,301 1,922,175
Culture and recreation..........coo oot iee i e e 3,484,464 3,814,404
[ =] (= ] TR SRRP 1,382,498 1,215,852
Total eXPeNSES.....cccicuviivirisimscerrannressras e 166,141,275 156,758,699
Excess (Deficiency) hefore transfers.......c.cccoivcvmiineiinciininennn, (5,570,919) (1,278,520)
TrANSTOIS . cnrereiiericeirteiriensvrererenrmrasmsrarsannrsssssoranssnsassnensrnns 1,421,036 1,494,632
Change in net position.........c.cconvriiiinicciienc s (4,149,883) 216,112
Net position at beginning of the year.........c.cccociieiiiniiniiinin 99,246,559 99,030,447
Net position at end of the year...........oceivciniviinnncnien e, $ 95,096,676 $ 99,246,559

Governmental expenses totaled $166.1 million of which $42.9 million (26%) was directly supported by program
revenues consisting of charges for services, operating and capital grants and contributions. General revenues
totaled $117.6 million, primarily coming from property taxes, motor vehicle excise taxes, hotel/motel taxes and

non-restricted state aid.

Governmental net position decreased by $4.1 during the current year. The primary components of this decrease
include an $8.9 million increase in the OPEB liability and a $6 million decrease in deferred outflows/(inflows) of
resources related to pensions. These decreases were offset by the recognition of $6.6 million from capital grants,
positive budgetary results of $2.2 million and $1.7 million of capital asset additions that were raised from the tax

rate.
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Business-type Activities

For the City's business-type activities, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $43.6 million at the close of 2017.

2017 2016
Assets:

CUITENE ASSEES. .. et tee ettt e e e es st een e et e senra e rae cniennas 15,719,906 $ 16,156,249

Noncurrent assets (excluding capital)................cccooiin, 343,037 440,466

Capital assets not being depreciated....................ooiiinnnn. 631,788 1,098,591

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...................... 56,209,200 55,284,342

TOtal ASSOES..iiurnrernrerrerecnrnrrammrarncananrararsrrrsessensssnsnensns 72,903,931 72,979,648
Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred outflows related to pensions.............o. oo 226,000 299,000
Liabilities:

Current liabilities (excluding debt).............cocooii 715,646 1,182,316

Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt).............cooo i, 1,626,523 1,575,152

O U[a = 018 (=) o PPN 4,107,386 4,759,183

Noncurrent debt. ..o 23,099,765 23,016,151

Total lHabilitieS..c.cvvereiiirerereniascriiarreirarerserasansnseresnanne 29,549,320 30,532,802
Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Deferred inflows related to pensions.................o oo 19,000 -
Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets..............ocoon 31,929,666 30,522,069

UNEESHICIRA. .. e e e e e e e e et e e crr e eenans 11,631,945 12,223,777

Total net POSHiON.....ccoiecireiiiic s 43,561,611 42,745,846
Program Revenues:

Charges for ServiCes...........oooiiieiii 18,786,678 19,339,929

Operating grants and contributions..................c.c.ooinn. 57,499 69,356

Capital grants and contributions.................cooi 867,444 279,725

TOtal TEVENUES .. ceeniniiinrnimiirrnrerernessasrssarararacassasarinrnsnss 19,711,621 19,689,010
Expenses:

WAL AN SEWEE ... e e et e e ettt e e et e e e e e saaes 17,474,820 17,766,044
Excess (Deficiency) before transfers........c...cccovveciiiiiiiinannns 2,236,801 1,922,966
TrANSTO S . euruvnsnirarunsarerereeraresnrarssnsassararssssnssasanssasnsnunanannnnnns (1,421,036) (1,494,632)
Change in net position........ccccoermiiiiininnn . 815,765 428,334
Net position at beginning of the year..........cccoociiiiiniiiinaniennans 42,745,846 42,317,512
Net position at end of the year.......cccccoornrmmeeiniinininnninn, $ 43,561,611 $ 42,745,846

Business-type net position of $31.9 million (73%) represents the net investment in capital assets while $11.6
million (27%) is unrestricted.
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The water and sewer enterprise fund net position increased by $816,000 in the current year. This increase is
primarily due to the recognition of $867,000 from capital grants.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements.

In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available
for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balances of $70.3 million.
This was comprised of the general fund totaling $48.1 million, the Hurld/Wyman School fund totaling $1.1 million,
a deficit of $226,000 for the library construction fund and $21.2 million for the nonmajor funds.

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $37.7 million, while total fund balance was $48.1 million. As a measure of the general fund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to tota! fund
expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 27% of the total general fund expenditures, while total fund
balance represents 34% of that same amount. Committed fund balance totals $9.5 million and consists of the
affordable housing stabilization fund totaling $3.4 million and unexpended capital articles totaling $6.1 million that
were carried forward to the subsequent year. Assigned fund balance totals $898,000 and consists of unexpended
appropriations that were encumbered to be expended in the subsequent year.

The general fund increased by $2.2 million, which is due to better than expected revenue collections totaling $3.9
million, unexpended appropriations totaling $751,000 and a $532,000 increase in amounts carried forward to be
expended in the subsequent fiscal year. These increases were offset by the use of free cash and overlay to fund
appropriations and the OPEB trust fund, respectively.

The State highway grants fund recognized $1.5 million of capital grant revenue and incurred $1.5 million of road
improvement costs.

The Hurld/Wyman School fund recognized $4.6 million of capital grant revenue and incurred $8.5 million of school
building costs for the construction of the new elementary school.

The Library Construction fund recognized $450,000 of capital grant revenue and incurred $3.9 million of
expenditures related to the renovation and expansion of the Woburn Public Library.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The $6.8 million (5%) increase between the original budget and the final amended budget was primarily due to
increases in appropriations for public safety, education, capital outlay and debt service.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. In conjunction with the annual operating budget, the City annually prepares a capital budget for
the upcoming year and a five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that is used as a guide for future capital
expenditures.

The City’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2017,
amounts to $254.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment and infrastructure.

Current year additions for the governmental investment in capital assets totaled $17.5 million. $4.0 million of
additions relate fo the public library project, $8.5 million is for the Hurld/WWyman elementary school construction
project, $1.7 million relates to street resurfacing, $1.5 million for land acquisition and $1.8 million is for vehicles,
equipment and building improvements.

The $2.3 million in water and sewer additions are mainly attributable to new water meters, relining water lines,
sewer line rehabilitation and improvements to the Shaker Glen pump station.

Debt Administration. The City maintains a Aa1 credit rating with Moody's Investors Services and continues to
maintain strong market access for both note and bond sales.

Outstanding long-term debt of the general government totaled $42.5 million, of which $32.3 million relates to
school projects, $8.7 million relates to land acquisition and $1.5 million relates to various other capital projects.

The water and sewer enterprise fund has $25.7 million of outstanding long-term debt, which is fully supported by
rates and does not rely on a general fund subsidy.

Short-term debt outstanding at year-end for the governmental activities totaled $5.0 million of which $1.8 million is
for the Hurld/Wyman Elementary Schoo! building project, $2.9 million is for the Library Reconstruction and
$300,000 is for land acquisition. The water and sewer enterprise fund outstanding short-term debt totaled $1.5
million and was used to finance water infrastructure improvements.

Please refer to the notes to the financial statements for further discussion of the major capital and debt activity.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Woburn's finances for all those with
an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, City Hall, 10 Common Street,
Woburn, Massachusetts 01801.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents..............ccoceevveeieeinieennes $ 48,009,861 $ 6,199,882 $ 54,200,743
INVESIMENTS......oetierreiererecrr e eeraeeeea e anians - 30,060,068 - 30,060,068
Receivables, net of allowance for uncoliectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... 40,750 - 40,750
Tax and Wtility Iens..........ccoevviiiiiiiiiciinn, 2,342,181 658,232 3,000,413
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.................... 513,221 - 513,221
USEr fBES....cevueiiieet e e e - 8,764,363 8,764,363
Departmental and other 1,118,846 - 1,118,846
Intergovernmental.............c..ociineanss 4,398,295 97,429 4,495,724
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate tax deferrals.............c.ooviiiiienn, 420,529 - 420,529
Intergovernmental.............coviiiininiii e, - 343,037 343,037
Tax fOrECIOSUMES. ...cecvereere et rnr et st e v e 702,764 - 702,764
Capital assets not being depreciated....... 38,639,246 631,788 39,271,034
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.......... 159,462,467 56,209,200 215,671,667
TOTALASSETS....ceeeirieciiiiiin i sstini e sn e 285,708,228 72,903,931 358,612,159
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions...... 14,843,000 226,000 15,069,000
LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable..............ocoooiiniii 3,682,190 385,280 4,067,470
Accrued payrall...... 1,062,523 - 1,062,523
Tax refunds payable 1,547,357 - 1,547,357
Accrued interest.............. 308,283 270,366 578,649
Payroll withholdings......... .. 44,069 - 44,089
Abandoned property.................... 138,970 - 138,970
Compensated absences.................. 1,844,000 60,000 1,904,000
Notes payable...............cc.coeeeienee, 4,997,600 1,641,800 6,539,400
Bonds payable............ccoooi s 3,125,000 2,565,586 5,690,586
NONCURRENT:
Compensated absences...........o.vvvevreveneen . 4,717,000 180,000 4,897,000
Cther postemployment benefits, 65,666,160 263,523 65,929,683
Net pension liability....... 77,706,000 1,183,000 78,889,000
Bonds payable 39,362,400 23,099,765 82,462,165
TOTAL LIABILITIES...... oottt e e 204,201,552 29,549,320 233,750,872
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions....... 1,253,000 19,000 1,272,000
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets...............coonicn s 167,023,141 31,929,666 188,952,807
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
Expendable 8,550,614 - 8,550,614
Nonexpendable 3,197,672 - 3,197,672
Gifts and grants 3,727,625 - 3,727,625
Unrestricted (77,402,376) 11,631,845 (65,770,431)
TOTAL NET POSITION......oviiiinn i e $ 95,096,676 $ 43,561,611 $ 138,658,287

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General government................
Public safety...........coooviiiinnis
Education........ccooeeeveeiveennnns
Publicworks..........oooeiiieiienne.
Human services.............c.o......
Culture and recreation..............
Interest.........ooieiiieiie

Total Governmental Activities...

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer............cc..o...

Total Primary Government......

See notes to basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue

7,151,619 § 1,046,904 $ 436,594 § 15,600 $ (5,652,521)
33,094,560 3,300,887 2,234,770 - (27,558,903)
105,597,983 2,121,087 26,356,147 4,898,011 (72,222,738)
13,467,850 164,616 10,355 1,271,732 (12,021,147)
1,962,301 116,963 98,142 - (1,747,196)
3,484,464 3,329 408,027 450,000 (2,623,108)
1,382,498 - - - (1,382,498)
166,141,275 6,753,786 29,544,035 6,635,343 (123,208,111)

17,474,820 18,786,678 57,499 867,444 2,236,801
$ 183,616,095 $ 25540464 $ 29,601,534 $ 7,502,787 $ (120,971,310)

{Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net position:
Net (expense) revenue from previous page............. $ (123,208,111) $ 2,236,801 $  (120,971,310)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds payable............................. 96,970,971 - 96,970,971
TAX IBNS. .ot ive it iee v eeere e e e e e 743,822 - 743,822
Motor vehicle excise taxes.........ccovvvviivivnenenns 7,101,091 - 7,101,091
Hotel/motel taX.......c.coeiv i 3,182,058 - 3,182,058
MEAIS 18X, .. cee e iiie e reeeen v et e 1,021,682 - 1,021,682
Penalties and interest ontaxes..............c..ococ e 504,770 - 504,770
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs...........ocoviviiiiiniin e, 6,172,440 - 6,172,440
Unrestricted investment income........................ 1,903,242 - 1,903,242
Miscellan@ouUS.........cceiniiiiiii e e 37,116 - 37,116
Transfers, NBt.......cc.ociieeuueiee e 1,421,036 (1,421,038) -
Total general revenues and transfers.................... 119,058,228 (1,421,038) 117,637,192
Change in net position................cooieis (4,149,883) 815,765 (3,334,118)
Net Position:
Beginning of year..........c....ccooiiiivine 99,246,559 42 745,846 141,992 405
End of YEar......oooiiiiit i e $ 95,096,676 $ 43561611 $ 138,658,287
See notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2017

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents.......................

Investments.............oo v
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:

Real estate and personal property taxes..
Real estate tax deferrals......................
Tax liens..............

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes......
Departmental and other....
Intergovernmental........
Tax foreclosures

Due from other funds............cc.ccooeveiiinnn

TOTALASSETS ...

LIABILITIES

Warrants payable............c....coooiii s
Accrued payroll.... ..o
Tax refunds payable.............cceeveeiiiinnne

Payroll withholdings....
Abandoned property...
Due to other funds...

Notes payable..........coocoveiiiin i,

TOTAL LIABILITIES.......coooiiiii e

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues...........c.coceveeeee v

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable........c...ccocimiiiniiininan
Restricted.....
Comnmitted.
Assigned......

Unassigned.........oooviimn e ceniiniee e
TOTAL FUND BALANCES......... oo

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES......

See notes to basic financial statements.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts

State Nonmajor Total
Highway Hurld/Wyman Library Governmental Governmental

General Grants School Construction Funds Funds
30,963,001 $ -3 2,739,428 $ 3,320,848 $ 10,086,584 $ 48,009,861
19,395,655 - - - 10,664,413 30,060,068
40,750 - - - - 40,750
420,529 - - - - 420,529
2,342,181 - - - - 2,342,181
513,221 - - - - - 513,221
18,201 - - - 1,100,645 1,118,846
- 2,151,575 1,799,371 - 447,349 4,398,295
702,764 - - - - 702,764
1,541,927 - - - - 1,541,927
55,938,229 2,151,575 4,538,799 3,320,848 23,198,991 89,148,442
1,291,055 - 1,604,055 646,646 140,435 3,682,191
1,062,523 - - - - 1,062,523
1,647,357 - - - - 1,547,357
44,069 - - - - 44,089
138,970 - - - - 138,970
- 1,541,927 - - - 1,541,927
- - 1,800,000 2,900,000 297,600 4,997,600
4,083,974 1,541,927 3,404,055 3,546,646 438,035 13,014,637
3,724,391 609,648 - - 1,547,994 5,882,033
- - - - 3,197,672 3,197,672
- - 1,134,744 - 18,040,349 19,175,003
9,511,346 - - - - 9,511,346
898,428 - - - - 898,428
37,720,090 - - (225,798) (25,059) 37,469,233
48,129,864 - 1,134,744 (225,798) 21,212,962 70,251,772
55,038,229 $ 2151575 $ § 4,538,799 § 3,320,848 $ 23,198,991 §$ 89,148,442
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Total governmental fund balances.............ooo i $ 70,251,772
Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported inthe funds.............coco 198,101,713

Accounts receivable are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are unavailable in the funds..................n i 5,882,033

Certain changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension
expense over future periods. These changes are reported as deferred outflows of
resources or (deferred inflows of resources) related to pensions....................... 14,843,000

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due........................ . (308,282)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:

BONAS PAYADIE... ... ..o en e et e (42,487,400)
Compensated @DSENCES. .. ... .. ooiiri ittt (6,561,000)
Net pension liability...............ccooooiiiii s . (77,706,000)
Deferred Inflows related {0 PENSIONS..........oo ot (1,253,000)
Other postemployment benefits... ... (65,666,160)

Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities...... ... (193,673,560)

Net position of governmental activities. .. ... ... e $ 95,096,676

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

State Nonmajor Total
Highway Hurld/Wyman Library Governmental Governmental
General Grants School Construction Funds Funds
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
netof taxrefunds........ccoocccvevvevveeeeenen. 3 97,442198 $ -3 -8 -8 - $ 97,442,198
TAX NSt et ver v i e e e 533,118 - - - - -633,118
Motor vehicle excise taxes............ e veveveinenns 7,011,959 - - - - 7,011,959
Hotel/motel tax........cooveiin e, 3,182,068 - - - - 3,182,068
Meals taX... ......ooevvnvrevi e e e 1,021,682 - - - - 1,021,682
Penalties and intereston taxes..................... 504,770 - - - - 504,770
Intergovernmental................c..cco vl 27,931,075 1,480,266 4,648,012 450,000 5,307,494 39,816,847
Departmental and other. 2,541,488 - - - 6,641,666 9,183,154
Contributions......... . 93,898 - - - 163,065 256,963
Investment iNCome.........coiiin i vin i 897,347 - - - 994,850 1,892,197
TOTAL REVENUES......... oo vvriiiee 141,159,593 1,480,266 4,648,012 450,000 13,107,075 160,844,946
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government..........cocee e ceeiee e 3,844,984 - - - 376,297 4,221,281
Public safety... 17,060,405 - - - 2,369,775 19,430,180
Education...... 60,064,432 - 8,539,992 - 6,014,855 74,619,279
Public works. .. 8,736,902 1,480,266 - - 1,630,261 11,847,429
HUMan ServiCes......c.occe e v vie e v aaes 1,384,064 - - - 161,767 1,635,831
Culture and recreation.........cc.ooo e 2,027,510 - - 3,927,789 349,454 6,304,753
Pension benefits..........c..co oo 18,394,029 - - - - 18,394,029
Employee benefits............cooc e iiiinn e 20,733,266 - - - - 20,733,266
State and county charges................cceeieeinen 3,521,053 - - - - 3,521,063
Capital outlay..........cocecrviimiiiii e 1,954,804 - - - - 1,964,804
Debt service:
Principal.......oo oo 2,865,000 - - - - 2,865,000
INEEIESE....ve e ee e e 1,369,899 - - - - 1,369,899
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ccocemv s 141,956,348 1,480,266 8,539,992 3,927,789 10,892,409 166,796,804
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES................. (796,755) - (3,891,980) (3,477,789) 2,214,666 (5,951,858)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES):
Proceeds from bonds...........o.o i - - 6,000,000 - 2,672,400 8,672,400
Premium from issuance of notes.................... - - - - 30,000 30,000
TranNSfers iN.....eveecee e e eer e e e e 4,876,730 - - - 1,885,663 6,761,383
Transfers Out.........cc.cceveiiiin e e (1,904,668) - - - (3,435,679) (5,340,347)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)......coovviiiiineiennnns 2,971,062 - 6,000,000 - 1,162,374 10,123,436
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES................. 2,174,307 - 2,108,020 (3,477,789) 3,367,040 4,171,578
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR. .. ..o coe et et e v nae e 45,955,557 - (973,276) 3,251,991 17,845,922 66,080,194
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR................ § 48,129,864 $§ - § 1134744 $  (225798) § 21,212,962 § 70,251,772

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds................ccoocoiii $ 4,171,578

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital OUHAY. .. ......oieire e e e e 17,627,496
Depreciation BXPENSE. .. .....u. ittt e e (4,515,726)
Net effect of reporting capital @ssets............coovevviiiiii 13,011,770

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavailable in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor
vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents

the net change in unavailable revenUE..........co.oveviiiiiiie (274,590)
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is
first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities.
Proceeds from DOMAS. ....o.uiveiie e cit et et eee e eea e e ee e e e e e e e (8,672,400)
Debt service principal payments...........oovrimiiiiiiin 2,865,000
Net effect of reporting long-term debt..............cooo (5,807,400)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated absences accrual..............ccoccciviiinnnr . 38,000
Net change in accrued interest on long-termdebt..............ccoooiinn, (42,597)
Net change in net pension liability.............cooooei (342,000)
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources related to pensions................ (6,016,000)
Net change in other postemployment benefit...............c.cooinn (8,888,644)
Net effect of recording long-term liabilities..................cco i (15,251,241)

Change in net position of governmental activities.................ccocooi T $  (4,149,883)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents... et B 6,199,882
Receivables, net of aIIowance for uncollectlbles
Utility liens O PP 658,232
Userfees............. 8,764,363
Intergovernmental...........c.ccciiviiiiiiiiiiiie i e 97,429
Total CUITENt 8SSEES......uur et e s e 15,719,906
NONCURRENT:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental... 343,037
Capital assets not belng depremated ................... 631,788

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 56,209,200
Total NONCUITENE @SSELS.....uevi i eeveii et recnie e ere i retseemat s e e arann s 57,184,025
TOTAL ASSETS ..ottt et eeeeer ettt e e et te e ee e et s re i a e e 72,903,931

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions..............ccoeeeinnne 226,000

LIABILITIES

CURRENT:
Warrants payable.............cccccvei v 385,280
Accrued interest.............. 270,366
Compensated absences 60,000
NOES PAYADIE. .. ... oo ittt et e e e 1,541,800
Bonds Payable.......cocooveiiriiiie e 2,565,586

Total current abilities. .. ... .. vee e e e e 4,823,032

NONCURRENT:
Compensated abSENCES. ... ..o iiviiiiii e 180,000
Other postemployment benefits 263,523
Net pension liability..........cooooonvii L 1,183,000

Bonds payable..........ccoooiii it e 23,099,765
Total noncurrent iabiities. .. ... ..o e 24,726,288
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .. ..ot et it cer e e e et s e e e e e st e 29,549,320

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. ...t 19,000
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets...........cooo i 31,929,666
UNESHHACEEM. .. ..ot eee it vt ver e et cr e et et et e s e s s ae e aa e e 11,631,945

TOTAL NET POSITION. .. ...cooiit it eiirerecerie et ieiie s e srenesane e e s eee B 43,561,611

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for SEIVICES. ...ttt er e e e $ 18,152,939
UBIIEY [IENS. .t eee oo s 633,739
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES.........cooiiiiiievii e, 18,786,678
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of services and administration...............ccocoevii 2,216,947
MVUVRA ASSESSIMIENT. .. oot iiitiieeieninie e ieiranseireaeans 12,679,968
DEPreciation...........cevvmeemir i i e e 1,885,462
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......ccociiii v 16,782,377
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....ccoiimiiiiiiiiiiiccrnn e 2,004,301
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense.............coceeeiin TSP SN SR (683,778)
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......coviiiiiiiiin e (692,443)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS ... et 1,311,858
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS. ..ot e 924,943
TRANSFERS:
TrANSTEIS TNt e e e Crnrerneernnin 65,075
Transfers OUL..........covveer e e (1,488,111)
TOTAL TRANSFERS . ..ottt iiee e e cr it aeaes (1,421,036)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ..ottt e e 815,765
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......cco i 42,745,846
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR....i.ciiee v e $ 43,561,611

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Business-type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Water and Sewer

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers and users.... .9 18,273,484

Payments to vendors.............c.cee e, (14,275,347)

Payments 10 @MPIOYEES..........ciiiiiiviii i e e (926,171)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....ccoo it e e 3,071,966
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

L 1 Lt L | OP O SRR PROP PP PP (1,486,111)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes............ccoooviii i 4,191,000

Capital grants received... 867,444

Acquisition and construcﬂon of capltal assets (2,343,517)

Principal payments on bonds and notes... (4,677,288)

INEIEST EXPENSE. .. et vveeerree e it eries et et e e ee et e e e ea e e e (644,975)
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES..........cc.oooeeee (2,607,336)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.......couiiiiii e {956,406)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........occiiiiiiicee 7,156,288
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR......cov i $ 6,199,882

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)... e P PUPP PR 2,004,301
Adjustments to reconcile operatlng income (Ioss) to net
cash from operating activities:

Depreciation... 1,885,462
Deferred (outﬂows)f nﬂows of resources related to pensxons ............................... 92,000
Changes in assets and liabilities:

URIlIEY NS, +e e oo eee e e et et sttt e e e e (615,659)

User fees... 102,465

Warrants payable (451,974)

Accrued compensated absences 16,000

Net pension liability... e 5,000

Other postemployment benef ts 34,371

Total AdJUSTMENTS. .. ... et e 1,067,665

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .. .cvitcee e creeermee e csiesie e sninnna e $ 3,071,966
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL, AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

INtErgOVENMENtal SUBSIAY. .. crv.v. ev e cerreaieearsessem e enn s s $ 148,059

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2017

Pension
Trust Fund Private
(as of December 31, OPEB Purpose Agency
2016) Trust Fund Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents............c.cccooeviiiiiiniinn. $ 6,383,239 § 131,723 § 59411 § 874,199
Investments...........oceeeveeiiieevienn 123,640,452 4,266,018 - -
Interest and dividends 77,308 - - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Intergovernmental............ccciiiieiin i 1,007,750 - - -
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ottt e 131,108,749 4,397,741 59,411 874,199
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable...........coooio i 180,830 - - 5,580

Liabilities due depositors.........occevvviiiiicin i e - - - 868,619
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot e e e s 180,830 - - 874,199
NET POSITION

Restricted for pension benefits...........c..ccooiiiiil 130,927,919 - - -

Restricted for OPEB.........co i - 4,397,741 - -

Held in trust for other purposes..........c...cooveviineiininnns - - 59,411 -
TOTAL NET POSITION. .. .ottt ea e $ 130,927,919 $ 4,397,741 § 59411 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Pension
Trust Fund Private
(as of December 31, OPEB Purpose
2016) Trust Fund Trust Funds

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Employer contributions to the trust.............cccccoccvvcniicve. $ 6,300,000 $ 750,000 $ -
Employer contributions to pay benefit payments...................... - 6,905,000 -
EMPIOYEE. .. oottt e et et e e e ettt bt e e e e e 2,980,864 - -
Intergovernmental... .......c..ooooiii i 137,092 - -
Transfers from other systems...........cooiii i 217,560 - -

Total contributions... ... e 9,635,516 7,655,000 -

Net investment income (loss):
Net change in fair value of investments.................oo i 9,154,861 - -
1Y 1= < ST RO 2,725,764 420,362 33

Total investment iNCome (10SS)... ... vvvivniirii i e 11,880,625 420,362 33

Less: investment @XPenSe........cvev e ieren et i e e e e (930,140) (11,932) -

Net investment income (I0SS)......... oo s 10,950,485 408,430 33

TOTAL ADDITIONS. .. ..ot e e e e 20,586,001 8,063,430 33

DEDUCTIONS:
ADMINISEAtION. .. it e et e e 482,536 - -
Transfers to other systems........c.co i e 430,995 - -
Benefits and refunds............cov oot i e e e e 12,670,225 6,905,000 -
Educational scholarships.........coo e - - 120
MISCEIIANEOUS. .. ..ot it cee e et cte i ree v aer s ner o raraer eenaee san s 47,169 - -

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ... e 13,630,925 6,805,000 120

CHANGE IN NET POSITION......co oo 6,955,076 1,158,430 (87)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............c.ooiieen o 123,972,843 3,239,311 59,498

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR... ..o iev e vt B 130,927,919 § 4,307,741 $ 59,411

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Year Ended June 30, 2017
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of Woburn, Massachusetts (City) have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.

A. Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Mayor and City Council {Council). As required
by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
City is considered to be financially accountable.

For financial reporting purposes, the City has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions
and institutions. The City has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable
as well as other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that
exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. As required by GAAP,
these basic financial statements present the City (primary government) and its component units. One entity has
been included as a component unit in the reporting entity, because of the significance of its operational and/or

financial relationship.

Component Unit Presented as a Fiduciary Fund — The following component unit is presented as a Fiduciary Fund
of the primary government due to the nature and significance of relationship between the City and the component

unit.

The Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide retirement benefits to City
employees, the Woburn Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is governed by a five-
member board comprised of the City Auditor (ex-officio), two members elected by the System’s participants, one
member appointed by the Mayor and one member appointed by the Board members. The System is presented
using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary fund financial

statements.

The System did not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available un-
audited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 10 Common Street, Woburn, Massachusetis 01801.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The City has entered into a joint venture with the Cities of Winthrop, Chelsea, Malden, and Revere and the Towns
of Melrose, North Reading, Reading, Saugus, Stoneham, Wakefield and Winchester to pool resources and share
the costs, risks and rewards of providing vocational education through the Northeast Metropolitan Regional
Vocational School District (NMRS). The City's assessment for 2017 was $1 ,786,672. Stand-alone financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, are available at Northeast Metropolitan Regional Vocational School
District, 100 Hemlock Road, Wakefield, Massachusetts 01880.
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B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net
position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which are supported primarily by user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:
s |ftotal assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding element (assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows or resources, etc.) for all funds of that category or type (total governmental
or total enterprise funds), and
e Ifthe total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at

least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is particularly significant to the
basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:
e Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 26 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements _ _ Year Ended June 30, 2017

« Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular function or
segment.

o Grants and contributions restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a particular function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. However, the effect of interfund services provided and used between functions is not eliminated as
the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions

affected.
Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60 days after
year-end. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become measurable
and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other

grant requirements are met.
The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund. Stabilization fund is also classified as part of the general fund.

The State highway grants fund is used to account for and report costs incurred for the construction and
reconstruction of City owned roadways. Costs charged to the fund are subject to reimbursement by the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

The Hurid/ Wyman School fund is used to account for financial resources associated with the construction of the
new Hurld/Wyman elementary school.

The Library Construction fund is used to account for financial resources associated with the renovation and
expansion of the Woburn Public Library.
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The nonmaijor governmental funds consist of special revenue, debt service, capital project and permanent funds
that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds
financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.

The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets of the governmental funds.

The permanent fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs.

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The City’s proprietary funds include the water and sewer enterprise fund which is used to account for the water
and sewer activities.

Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The other postemployment benefit trust fund accumulates resources to provide funding for future OPEB (other
postemployment benefits) liabilities.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
pension trust fund or permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.
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D. Cash and Investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.

E. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessors for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes
are due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1% and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are
not paid by the respective due date. Real estate and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables

in the year of the levy.

Real estate tax liens are imposed in October of each year on delinquent properties and are recorded as
receivables in the year they are processed. Real estate tax liens may be subject to foreclosure if the tax liens are
not paid in accordance with the period required by the law (M.G.L. Ch.60, §50). Foreclosure proceedings are
processed by the Treasurer or other tax lien custodian. Foreclosed properties can then be sold through
advertised public auction or held for use by the City.

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly,
an allowance for uncollectibles is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated
based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in
the year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the
fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of

value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Water and Sewer User Fees

User fees for residential and small commercial users are levied semi-annually while the top 20 commercial users
are levied monthly. Residential user fees are based on flat rates while commercial user fees are based on
individual meter readings. All user fees are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective
due date. Unbilled user fees are estimated at year-end and are recorded as revenue in the current period. Water

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 29 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements _ _ Year Ended June 30, 2017

and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and included as a lien on the property owner's tax bill.
Water and sewer fees and liens are recorded as receivables in the year of the levy.

Since the receivables are secured via the lien process, these accounts are considered 100% collectible and
therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of ambulance charges and are recorded as receivables in
the year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account
analysis.

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
F. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.

G. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery and
equipment, and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity column of the government-wide financial statements, and the
proprietary fund financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical
cost, if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value at the date of donation. Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of state recommended capitalization thresholds are capitalized at
the date of acquisition or construction, respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.
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Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type {(in years)
Land improvements................cooviei 20
Buildings.......ccoovev e 40
Building improvements..................... 20
VEhiClES... oo e 5-10
Machinery and equipment........................ 5-10
Infrastructure.......ccooooieiiiiii 10-40

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.

H. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has reported deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The City has reported deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in this category.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

In addition to liabilities, the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have been recorded in the governmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not
available and so will nof be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until it becomes available. The City
has reported unavailable revenues from property taxes as deferred inflows of resources in this category.

|. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal
balances.”

Fund Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”

or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

J. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.
Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net.”

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

K. Net position and Fund Equity

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)

Net position reported as “net investment in capital assets” includes capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, less the principal balance of outstanding debt used to acquire capital assets. Unspent proceeds of
capital related debt are not considered to be capital assets.

Net position is reported as restricted when amounts are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by
outside parties for a specific future use.

Net position has been “restricted for” the following:
“Permanent funds - expendable” represents the amount of realized and unrealized investment earnings of donor
restricted trusts. The restrictions and trustee policies only allows the trustees to approve spending of the realized

investment earnings.

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents the endowment portion of donor restricted trusts that support
governmental programs.
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“Gifts and grants” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties and consists primarily of state and
federal grants.

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted — net position and
unrestricted — net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the City’s policy to
consider restricted — net position to have been depleted before unrestricted — net position is applied.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.

The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:

“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. A vote of the City
Council is the highest level of decision making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Once
voted. the limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose or a

vote is taken to rescind the commitment.

“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council has by resolution authorized the City Auditor
to assign fund balance. The City Council may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund
balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.

“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.

The City’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one

purpose.
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L. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statement of net position.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.

M. Investment income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income derived from the proprietary funds is retained by the proprietary funds.

N. Fair Value Measurements

The City reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards. These
standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets)
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques) to determine fair value.
Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial instruments into a three-level
hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in accordance with net asset value practical
expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on lock up and notice periods associated with
the underlying funds.

Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

Level 1 — Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date.
Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt securities, U.S.
government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active markets.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable
as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.
Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, are classified as Level 2 because fair values are
estimated using pricing models, matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.

In some instances the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy
and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics specific to
the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of
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market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible
that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect amounts reported in these financial statements. For more information on the fair value of the City’s
financial instruments, see Note 2 — Cash and Investments.

O. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of both the
Woburn Contributory Retirement System and the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System and additions
to/deductions from the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

P. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

Q. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

R. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.
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S. Fund Deficits

Several individual fund deficits exist at June 30, 2017, in the capital project funds. These deficits will be funded
by grants, bond proceeds and available fund balance.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this
pool is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents.” The deposits and investments of the
trust funds are held separately from those of other funds.

Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities, certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool (Pool). The Treasurer may also invest trust funds in securities, other than mortgages or collateral loans,
which are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth. In addition,
there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and investments.

The Pool meets the criteria of an external investment pool. The Pool is administered by the Massachusetts
Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), which was established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth who serves
as Trustee. The fair value of the position in the Pool is the same as the value of the Pool shares.

The System participates in the Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT), which meets the criteria of an external
investment pool. PRIT is administered by the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board, which was
established by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts who serves as Trustee. The fair value of
the position in the PRIT is the same as the value of the PRIT shares.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The City’s policy allows unlimited deposits in bank accounts or CD's (up to one year maturity) that
are fully collateralized through a third party agreement. For uncollateralized bank accounts and CD’s, deposits
may not exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other deposit insurance coverage.

These deposits will be limited to no more than 5% of an institution's assets and no more than 25% of the City's
cash. This percentage may be increased for not more than 30 days during times of heavy collection or in
anticipation of large payments that will be made by the City in the near future. CD’s will be purchased for no more
than one year and will be reviewed frequently. The City’s policy also allows unlimited investments in money
market funds, which are allowed by statute and are considered to be liquid funds.

At year-end, the carrying amount of deposits totaled $52,960,542 and the bank balance totaled $55,011,494. Of
the bank balance, $2,124,388 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance, $8,756,208 was covered by
Depositors Insurance Fund, $33,902,179 was collateralized and $10,228,719 was uncollateralized.

At December 31, 2016, the carrying amount of deposits for the System totaled $1,077,772 and the bank balance
totaled $1,251,758. All of the bank balance was covered by Federal Depository Insurance.
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Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of a failure by the counterparty, the City will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral security that are in the possession of an outside party. The City's
investments subject to custodial credit risk include $4,121,922 in government sponsored enterprises, $7,359,118
in corporate bonds and $14,637,278 in equity securities, which have custodial credit risk exposure totaling
$26,118,318 because the related securities are uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty. The City
does not have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

The System's investments subject to custodial credit risk include $1,997,458 in government agencies, $1,791,010
in government sponsored enterprises, $5,836,418 in corporate bonds and $23,073,706 in equity securities, which
have custodial credit risk exposure totaling $32,698,592 because the related securities are uninsured,
unregistered and held by the counterparty. The System does not have an investment policy for custodial credit

risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The City’s investment policy limits investment maturities to one year, except for the trust funds which are not
limited, as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The
System does not have formal investment policies that limit investment maturities as a means of managing
exposure to fair value losses arising from decreasing interest rates.

The City participates in MMDT, which maintains a cash portfolio and a short-term bond fund with combined
average maturities of approximately 3 months.

The System participates in PRIT. The effective weighted duration rate for PRIT investments ranged from 0.45 to
22.60 years.

As of June 30, 2017, the City had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less More
Investment Type Fair Value Than 1 1t05 61010 Than 10
Debt Securities
Government Sponsored
ENEIPIISES. .. c.v e e e vreveirieeees e e e srsncnen s e B 4,121,922 § 600,877 $ 2,892,183 $ 183,226 $§ 445,636
Corporate BoNdS........c.ccovvvviioireees simrin e e 7,359,118 655,683 5,388,875 183,226 445,636
Total Debt SECUMEES. ...ccccvv et 11,481,040 § 1,256,560 $ 8,281,058 $ 366,452 § 891,272
Other Investments
Equity SECUMHES.....ccovovmiiiiiii e 14,637,278
Equity Mutual Funds... 3,346,006
Negotiable Certificates of Deposﬂ 4,861,762
Money Market Mutual Funds.............oi e 336,792
MMDT... 1,977,742
Total INVEStMENES.....cceeeeeccrirn s $ 36,640,620
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As of December 31, 2016, the System had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in years)

More

Investment Type Fair Value 1t0 5 6to 10 Than 10
Debt Securities

Government AGENCIES. ......covvvveeiveciecre v eveeriee e B 1,997,458 § 39997 $ - % 1,957,461

Government Sponsored Enterprises................oooee e 1,791,010 662,515 384,176 744,319

Corporate Bonds..........ccveceeereecrn i 5,836,418 646,086 1,780,184 3,410,148

Bond Mutual FUNS........c..ooovieeriireieereeeniceeccene e 9,149,532 - 9,149,532 -

Total Debt SEOUMLIES.....c.ovcveveieieeeicrie et 18,774,418 § 1,348,598 $ 11,313,892 $ 6,111,928

Other Investments

Equity SecUrtiEs...........ccoivmiimiinn e 23,073,706

Equity Mutual FUNAS........c.coooiiiie e 19,520,480

Pooled Real Estate Funds...........ccoo i s 626,978

Pooled Alternative Investments............ccocceveeiee i 8,790,780

Money Market Mutual Funds..............ccco oo 5,305,467

(o= { i T U PPPUPP 52,854,090

Total INVesStMEeNtS. ...

Credit Risk

$ 128,945,919

The City's investment policy limits investments in debt securities to United States Treasuries and Agency
obligations, which carry an AA+ rating and other investments which are legal for the investment of funds of
savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth. As of June 30, 2017, Standard & Poor’s Investors Service

rated the City’s investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair
Investment Type Value AAA AA+ A BBB BB B Unrated
Government Sponsored
Enterprises................ $ 4121922 § - § 4121922 § - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
Corporate Bonds........... 7,359,118 809,220 1,285,391 3,743,663 787,547 400,507 101,084 221,706
Total...ccvcvveveerveeeee. $ 11,481,040 § 809,220 $ 5417,313 § 3,743,663 $ 787547 § 400,507 § 101,084 $ 221,708

The City’s investments in MMDT were unrated.

City of Woburn, Massachusetts
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The System has not adopted a formal policy related to credit risk. As of December 31, 2016, Standard & Poor’s
Investors Service rated the System’s investments as follows:

Quality Ratings

Fair

Investment Type Value AAA AA+ A BBB Unrated
Government Sponsored

Enterprises.......ccccoveune $ 1,791,010 $ - $ 1,791,010 $ - $ - $ -
Government Agencies.... 1,997,458 - 1,997,458 - - -
Corporate Bonds............. 5,836,418 168,346 562,740 1,192,973 1,014,951 2,897,408
Bond Mutual Funds......... 9,149,532 9,149,532 - - - -
Total.c.ovvii et $ 18,774418 $ 9,317,878 $ 4,351,208 $ 1,192,973 $ 1014951 $ 2,897,408

The System’s investments in PRIT were unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City will minimize the concentration of credit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio, so that the impact of
potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be minimized. No more than 5% of the City's

investments are invested in any one issuer.

The System places no limit on the amount the System may invest in any one issuer. No more than 5% of the
System'’s investments are invested in any one issuer.

Fair Market Value of Investments

The City holds investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core
part of the City’s mission, the City determines that the disclosures related to these investments only need to be
disaggregated by major type. The City chooses a tabular format for disclosing the levels within the fair value

hierarchy.

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.
Level 1 inputs are quoted price in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.
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The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
June 30, Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level:
Debt Securities:
Corporate bonds..........ccocvivierioriii i e 8 7,359,118 $ - $ 7359118 $ -
Government Sponsored Enterprises....................... 4,121,922 4,121,922 - -
Total debt SecUrities. .. oo oeevee e e e e 11,481,040 4,121,922 7,359,118 -
Other investments:
Equity securities..............oooii 14,637,278 14,637,278 - -
Equity mutual funds.........cooooiiii 3,346,006 3,346,006 - -
Negotiabie Certificates of Deposit.....................co 4,861,762 4,861,762
Money Market Mutual Funds.................. 336,792 336,792 - -
Total other investments. ... ....coooeei i e e 23,181,838 23,181,838 - -
Total investments measured at fair value.................... 34,662,878 $ 27,303,760 $ 7,359,118 $ -

Investments measured at amortized cost:

Total INVESIMENES... e vee e ettt eee e § 36,640,620

Government sponsored enterprise, equity securities, equity mutual funds, negotiable certificates of deposit and
money market mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quotes in
active markets for those securities. Corporate bonds classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on securities’ relationship to
benchmark quoted prices.

MMDT investments are valued at amortized cost. Under the amortized cost method, an investment is valued
initially at its cost and adjusted for the amount of interest income accrued each day over the term of the
investment to account for any difference between the initial cost and the amount payable at its maturity. If
amortized cost is determined not to approximate fair value, the value of the portfolio securities will be determined
under procedures established by the advisor.
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The retiree defined benefit plan holds significant amounts of investments that are measured at fair value on
recurring basis. Because investing is a key part of the plan’s activities, the plan shows greater disaggregation in
its disclosures. The plan chooses a tabular format for disclosing the levels within the fair value hierarchy.

The System categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The System has the following recurring fair value measurements as of December

31, 2016:
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type 12/31/16 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level:
Debt Securities:
Government 8genCies. .. ... vvvvvree e cencee e e B 1,097,458 $ 1,997,458 $ - % -
Government Sponsored Enterprises................c.ccovee 1,791,010 1,791,010 - -
Corporate bonds... .....ccccoov i 5,836,418 - 5,836,418 -
Bond mutual funds. .. ... ..o e e e e 9,149,632 9,149,532 - -
Total debt SECUNHIES... ... ovv o e e e e 18,774,418 12,938,000 5,836,418 -
Other investments:
Equity securities... ... e 23,073,706 23,073,706 - -
Equity mutual funds............ccoiii 19,520,480 19,520,480 - -
Pooled Real Estate Funds............ccee i e 626,978 - - 626,978
Pooled Alternative Investments..................coi 8,790,780 - - 8,790,780
Money Market Mutual Funds...................oo e 5,305,467 5,305,467 - -
Total other investments..........cooot e i 57,317,411 47,899,653 - 9,417,758
Total investments measured at fair value.................... 76,091,829 $ 60,837,653 $ 5,836,418 § 9,417,758

Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV):

P RIT .o e e e e e e e e e e e 52,854,090
Total INVeStMENTS. .. .. cee e e ceeciieiee e B 128,945,919

Debt and equity securities and money market mutual funds classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are
valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on
the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices. Pooled real estate funds and pooled alternative
investments classified in Level 3 are valued using either a discounted cash flow or market comparable company's

technique.

PRIT Investments are valued using the net asset value (NAV) method. This investment pool was established by
the Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, who serves as Trustee. PRIT is administered by the
Pension Reserves Investment Management Board (PRIM). The fair values of the positions in each investment
Pool are the same as the value of each Pool's shares. The System does not have the ability to control any of the

investment decisions relative to its funds in PRIT.
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NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

At June 30, 2017, receivables for the individual major and nonmajor governmental funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ 814,012 $ (773,262) $ 40,750
Real estate tax deferrals.........c.cco oo, 420,529 - 420,529
- 1= TP 2,342,181 - 2,342,181
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 1,506,604 (993,383) 513,221
Departmentaland other................oonn s 1,888,461 (769,615) 1,118,846
Intergovernmental................ooo 4,398,295 - 4,398,295
Lo} v= | T O PN $ 11,370,082 $ (2,536,260) $ 8,833,822
At June 30, 2017, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise funds consist of the following:
Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

ULty TBNS. .. v D 658,232 $ - % 658,232
B Y= (= = TR U PP 8,764,363 - 8,764,363
Intergovernmental..............coooiviiin i 440,466 - 440,466
TOtAl e oo 39,863,061 8 - $ 9,863,061

Governmental funds report unavailable revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At the end of the current year, the various
components of unavailable revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Other
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Asset type:
Real estate and personal property taxes............... $ (272,505) $ - % (272,505)
Real estate tax deferrals..........ccoooeeieieiniin 420,529 - 420,529
TaX NS, .. e et ee et it e e et et et e i 2,342,181 - 2,342,181
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes................... 513,221 - 513,221
Departmental and other..............cooviei e 18,201 1,100,645 1,118,846
Intergovernmental..............ooo i - 1,056,997 1,066,997
Tax foreCloSUrES. ..ot vt e e e e aans 702,764 - 702,764
TO Al e oo e e e $ 3,724,391 8 2,157,642 $ 5,882,033
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Total governmental activities

City of Woburn, Massach

capital assets, net............

usetts

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
17T T IR PR 22,068,936 $ 1,502,518 - $ 23,571,454
Construction iN Progress. .. ... vueeeerenviivininreennnn. 2,546,916 12,663,715 (142,839) 15,067,792
Total capital assets not being depreciated............ 24,615,852 14,166,233 (142,839) 38,639,246
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements..........c..ccoovvvieniiienninninninnnnn, 6,758,976 54,380 - 6,813,356
Building improvements..............ccooiiiin e, 17,903,369 810,015 - 18,713,384
BUIAINGS. .. ovvvee e e v e 147,948,682 - - 147,948,682
VENICIES. .. cov vt e e e 3,359,642 568,910 (311,163) 3,617,389
Machinery and equipment..............ccooeeviiiieienn, 9,926,787 398,200 (365,302) 9,959,685
INFrastrUCIUTE. ...t e e e e 59,674,238 1,672,597 - 61,346,835
Total capital assets being depreciated................. 245,571,694 3,504,102 (676,465) 248,399,331
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements. .. ......cccovivieeiiniiiieeeeeinnannnn s (2,517,382) (224,976) - (2,742,358)
Building improvements...........cccoccoeiiiiniinniiiinnnenn (11,600,406) (730,475) - (12,330,881)
BUIINGS. ..t eeeee e (23,565,024) (794,070) - (24,359,094)
VBRICIES. . ee et et e e (2,779,125) (652,077) 311,163 (3,020,039)
Machinery and equipment..............coooveiinniiniennn (6,289,715) (568,982) 365,302 (6,493,395)
INFraSIIUCIUNE. .o o ee ettt (38,345,951) (1,645,146) - (39,991,097)
Total accumulated depreciation......................... (85,097,603) (4,515,726) 676,465 (88,936,864)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 160,474,091 (1,011,624) - 159,462,467

185,089,943 $ 13,154,609 $

(142,839) $ 198,101,713
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Water and Sewer Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
[0 T T« [P PP P PP $ 332,240 $ -3 - % 332,240
Construction in Progress........covvvvvviiiiviiienieeiinnn 766,351 299,548 (766,351) 299,548
Total capital assets not being depreciated............ 1,098,591 299,548 (766,351) 631,788
Capital assets being depreciated:
BUIIINGS. .. oo et ieeeit i e 7,630,065 104,928 - 7,734,993
VEHICIES . .. oot e ee e e e aaes 94,000 - (61,000) 33,000
Machinery and equipment..........c..coooeviiiinninn, 466,565 - - 466,565
INFrastrUGIUNe. ... it vt e e eaae s 77,520,286 2,705,392 - 80,225,678
Total capital assets being depreciated................. 85,710,916 2,810,320 (61,000) 88,460,236
Less accumulated depreciation for:
BUIlINGS.... ..o (3,139,056) (183,779} - (3,322,835)
VENICIES . et ettt e (94,000) - 61,000 (33,000)
Machinery and equipment..............ccooiin (416,607) (10,934) - (427,541)
INFrastrUCIUIE. ... ooe e e e (26,776,911) (1,690,749) - (28,467,660)
Total accumulated depreciation......................... (30,426,574) (1,885,462) 61,000 (32,251,036)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 55,284,342 924,858 - 56,209,200
Total water and sewer activities capital assets, net......... $ 56,382,933 $ 1,224,406 $ (766,351) $ 56,840,988

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General QOVEIMMENT..........coviii i $ 139,757
Public safety. ... ..o 760,535
BAUCALION. .. oottt et et e e e e 1,366,473
P G WOTK S . < ot et e e e e e e e e 2,048,406
HUMAN SEIVICES . - o e iee e e ettt ettt e e e e e aaes 8,604
Culture and recreation..........coccecieeve e e 191,951
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities.................... $ 4,515,726

Business-Type Activities:
Water and SEWEN.......covvvvee e iiieeeee e, U - $ 1,885,462
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NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Due To/From Other Funds

As of June 30, 2017, the City has an interfund receivable/payable of $1,541,927 which exists between the general
fund and the state highway grants fund. The purpose of this balance is to cover short-term cash needs that will be

funded by future grant proceeds.

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Water and
General Governmental  Sewer Enterprise
Transfers Out; Fund Funds Fund Total
General Fund...........ooooeeeiii i $ -3 1,839,593 $ 65,075 $ 1,904,668 (1)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds........ 3,389,619 46,060 - 3,435,679 (2)
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund..... 1,486,111 - - 1,486,111 (3)
Total ..o e $ 4875730 $ 1,885,653 $ 65,075 $ 6,826,458

(1) Represents budgeted transfers from the general fund to the debt service fund and to the enterprise funds.
(2) Represents budgeted transfers to the general fund from other available funds and a budgeted transfer from

the general fund to the green energy revolving fund.
(3) Represents the transfer of indirect costs from the water and sewer enterprise fund to the general fund.

NOTE 6 — LEASES

Operating Lease

The City entered into a commercial lease for temporary library space due to the renovation of the City’s Library.
The remaining lease payments total $263,708 as of June 30, 2017, and the lease expires on October 30, 2018.

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

e Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).

« Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes {(GANS).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise fund,

respectively.
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Details related to the short-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
Interest June 30, June 30,
Type Purpose Rate Due Date 2016 Issued Redeemed 2017
Governmental Activities:
BAN  Municipal Purpose..............cccooeeens 2.00% 03/30/17 $ 7,511,754 - % 751,754 § -
BAN  Municipal Purpose.......c..c..c.ceeeee. 1.85% 09/29/17 - 6,600,000 - 6,600,000
Total Governmental Activities............cceoviiiniinie s 7,511,754 6,600,000 7,511,754 6,600,000
General obligation bonds issued 9/28/17............ccoeeeveennnee - {(1,602,400) - (1,602,400)
L1 o (o1 | PR PP 7,511,754 4,997,600 7,511,754 4,997,600
Business-Type Activities:
BAN  Water Improvements.............cc.e.e. 2.00% 03/30/17 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 -
BAN  Municipal PUrpose...........coeeuveeennns 1.85% 09/29/17 - 310,000 - 310,000
BAN  Water Improvements.................... 1.25% 03/29/18 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
Total Business-Type Activities...............ocoveeieeiiiinnniies 2,300,000 1,810,000 2,300,000 1,810,000
General obligation bonds issued 9/28/17...................c.. - (268,200) - (268,200)
SUB-OtAL .. .ot e it e e e e e 2,300,000 1,541,800 2,300,000 1,541,800
Total Short-term Debt........ccooevrve e $ 9811,754 $§ 6,539,400 $ 9,811,754 § 6,539,400

$6,910,000 of BAN’s matured on September 29, 2017, of which $1,870,600 were redeemed through the issuance
of general obligation bonds totaling $1,602,400 and $268,200; which are reported in the governmental and
enterprise funds, respectively. An additional $339,400 was redeemed with premiums from the related long-term
debt and the remaining balance of $4,700,000 was renewed with an interest rate of 2.0% per annum and a

maturity date of September 28, 2018.
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Under the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 10, Municipal Law authorizes indebtedness up to a limit of 5% of the
equalized valuation. Debt issued in accordance with this section of the law is designated as being "inside the
debt limit.” In addition, however, debt may be authorized in excess of that limit for specific purposes. Such debt,
when issued, is designated as being "outside the debt limit.”

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2017, and the debt service requirements are as
follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Governmental Funds

Original Interest

Maturities Loan Rate Beginning Ending

Project Through Amount (%) Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2007....................... 2027 2,370,000 200 $ 1,570,000 § -$ (155,000) § 1,415,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2012..........cc..ooooeeee. 2037 70,154,000 3.16 17,045,000 - (835,000) 16,210,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2012........ 2025 4,830,000 3.26 4,195,000 - (515,000) 3,680,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013................eeve s 2023 1,826,000 3.64 1,260,000 - (180,000) 1,080,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2013........ 2026 12,610,000 3.78 12,610,000 - (1,180,000} 11,430,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2017................cc.0 2042 7,070,000 375 - 7,070,000 - 7,070,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2018...............coeie 2032 1,602,400 5.00 - 1,602,400 - 1.602 400
B 1 | U OO U U U U UP PP PRTPRTPOIURN | 36,680,000 $ 8672400 $ (2,865,000) $_ 42487400

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds payable in future years are as
follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 3125000 $ 1,366,708 $ 4,491,708
2019, 3,147,400 1,314,412 4,461,812
2020.....cciieiieennes 3,185,000 1,209,152 4,394,152
2021 3,380,000 1,098,277 4,478,277
202200 3,375,000 979,177 4,354 177
2023, 3,445,000 854,527 4,299,527
2024, 3,285,000 723,952 4,008,952
2025....ccciiiiiiinne 3,045,000 607,652 3,652,652
2026....ccciieiiiiene 2,630,000 517,458 3,147,458
2027 1,355,000 455,638 1,810,638
2028.....ceeiiniiinennns 1,210,000 413,409 1,623,409
2029.....iiiiiiiie 1,210,000 373,894 1,583,894
2030....cciiiieeeeee 1,200,000 333,924 1,633,924
2031, 1,180,000 294,189 1,474,189
2032 1,180,000 254,890 1,434,890
2033, 1,055,000 216,490 1,271,490
2034, .. 1,055,000 179,340 1,234,340
2035 1,050,000 141,781 1,191,781
2036...ccciiiiieiieenne 1,050,000 103,812 1,153,812
2037 e 1,050,000 65,508 1,115,508
2038, 255,000 42,394 297,394
2039, 255,000 34,106 289,106
2040... .o 255,000 25,819 280,819
2041 255,000 17,213 272,213
2042, 255,000 8,606 263,606

Total..oeoereieieeneee $ 42487400 $ 11,632,328 $ 54,119,728

City of Woburn, Massachusetts 47 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements _ Year Ended June 30, 2017

Bonds and Notes Payable Schedule — Enterprise Funds

Original Interest
Maturities Loan Rate Beginning Ending
Project Through Amount (%) Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

MWPAT - stormwater (03- 21) 2025 $ 210,033 200 $ 115,000 § -$ (10,000) $ 105,000
MCWT 00-07... e e e e 2021 5,046,059 4.46 1,635,000 - (305,000) 1,330,000
MWRA Notes of 2007 2017 1,100,000 0.00 110,000 - (110,000) -
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2008 2018 220,000 463 60,000 - (25,000) 25,000
MWRA Notes of 2008.. 2018 1,200,000 0.00 240,000 - (120,000) 120,000
MCWT CW-08-05.........ocoiiiiiii s 2018 300,000 2.00 64,990 - (32,170) 32,820
MCWT CW-05-12... 2018 225,000 2.00 48,743 - (24,128) 24,615
MCWT CW-07-15... 2029 250,000 2.00 173,013 - (11,771) 161,242
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2009 ....................... 2030 6,500,000 418 5,050,000 - (270,000) 4,780,000
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2000........ 2020 900,000 3.83 345,000 - (90,000) 255,000
MWRA Notes of 2010.......oovveev v 2016 1,154,330 0.00 461,732 - (115,433) 346,299
MCWT DWS 08-19..... 2031 6,241,464 2.00 4,906,808 - (283,325) 4,623,483
MCWT DWS 0717 2031 3,162,577 2.00 2,843,174 - (164,492) 2,678,682
MWRA Notes of 2012... 2022 1,000,000 0.00 600,000 - {100,000) 500,000
MCWT DWS 08-19-A... . 2033 2,035,158 2.00 1,780,995 - (87,721) 1,693,274
Municipal Purpose Refundlng Bonds of 2012". RN 2025 2,965,000 3.38 2,595,000 - (305,000) 2,290,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2013... T 2033 4,300,000 3.32 3,655,000 - (215,000) 3,440,000
MCWT DWS-07-17-A.. 2031 619,179 2.00 17,627 - (1,007) 16,620
MWRA Water Bnd Loan #859 2026 67,075 0.00 67,075 - (6,708) 60,367
MWRA Water Bonds 2017... 2037 2,381,000 3.13 - 2,381,000 - 2,381,000
Municipal Purpose Bonds of 2018......... TR 2028 268,200 5.00 - 268,200 - 268,200
SUB-TOTAI WALET ... ... eee ettt cee oo it ee e e ee v e e e b e e e et e et e e e 24,759,157 2,649 200 (2,276,755) 25,131,602
Municipal Purpose Refunding Bonds of 2009........ 2020 506,000 3.83 195,000 - (50,000} 145,000
MWRA Inflow/Infiltration Notes of 2013................ 2018 479,050 0.00 191,620 - (95,810) 95,810
MWRA Inflow/Infiltration Notes of 2015................ 2025 366,175 0.00 329,557 - (36,618) 292,939
LT e T O S S PP PPPN 716,177 - (182.428) 533,749
Total enterprise FUNGS........c..eveiii it et e et e et e eeas oo e en s e e et e e gee s $ 25475334 $ 2,649,200 $  (2,459,183) § 25,665,351

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water and sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable
in future years are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2018, $ 2,565,586 $ 686,732 $ 3,252,318
2019..c e 2,336,939 620,154 2,957,093
2020 2,360,367 546,524 2,906,891
2021 e 2,151,800 488,952 2,640,752
2022.....cciiieiianen, 1,833,906 433,827 2,267,733
2023.. e 1,751,259 383,771 2,135,030
2024, 1,773,865 332,077 2,105,942
2025 1,801,723 280,452 2,082,175
2026....ccciiiineeennn 1,508,233 235,880 1,744,113
2027, 1,514,919 196,005 1,710,924
2028...cceiiiiieeennn 1,369,485 155,184 1,524,669
2029...cciiiiiiiiie 1,403,429 113,711 1,517,140
2030....cceiiniiiiennn 1,422,390 70,923 1,493,313
2031 e 966,602 37,834 1,004,436
2032, 376,108 20,913 397,021
2033 378,740 10,465 389,205
2034, 40,000 4,588 44 588
2035... e 40,000 3,388 43,388
2036.....cccieeiiieenne 35,000 2,188 37,188
2037 .. 35,000 1,094 36,094

Total......coeeerii e, $ 25665351 $ 4624662 $ 30,290,013
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The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/Inflow Local Assistance Program
for community owned collection systems. For each community approved for the project, financial assistance
received from the MWRA consists of a grant and non-interest bearing loan. At June 30, 2017, the outstanding
principal amount of these loans totaled $388,749.

The governmental funds are scheduled to be subsidized by the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (MCWT) on a
periodic basis for principal in the amount of $1,223 and interest costs for $14,383. Thus, net MCWT loan
repayments, including interest, are scheduled to be $112,277. Since the City is legally obligated for the total
amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements. The
2017 interest subsidy totaled $2,676.

The water and sewer enterprise fund is scheduled to be subsidized by the MCWT on a periodic basis for principal
in the amount of $440,466 and interest costs for $90,165. Thus, net MCWT loan repayments, including interest,
are scheduled to be $921,328. The principal subsidies are guaranteed and therefore a $440,466
intergovernmental receivable has been reported in the proprietary fund financial statements. Since the City is
legally obligated for the total amount of the debt, such amounts have been recorded in the accompanying basic
financial statements. The 2017 principal and interest subsidies totaled $90,560 and $57,499, respectively.

The City is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2017, the City had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Water system improvements.............co..coiieenn $ 1,693,011
Surface drainage..........covvveenrreiiiiniiii i 6,800,000
Water MeterS. .ot 6,000,000
Land ACQUISIEION. .. ....couuiiririi i 1,900,000
Infiltration & Inflow Reduction..........ccccooovvveiiiinnninnnnn 6,366,750
Ladder TTUCK. ...c.ovi it e eaeens 1,300,000
Library design & reconstruction...........cc...oooveieiiiennin, 27,537,490
Elementary School Replacement...................ooii 27,792,264

LI - | P PpoS $ 79,289,515

Changes in Long-term Liabilities

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences.............. $ 6,509,000 $ 1,802,000 $ (1,840,000) $ 6,561,000 $ 1,844,000
Other postemployment benefits... .. 58,777,516 17,784,116 (8,895,472) 65,666,160 -
Net pension liability..................... 77,364,000 20,394,000 (20,052,000) 77,706,000 -
Bonds payable..............cccocee o 36,680,000 8,672,400 (2,865,000) 42,487,400 3,125,000
Total e oo 8 177,420,516 $ 48,652,516 $ (33,652,472) $ 192,420,560 $ __ 4,969,000
Business-type Activities:
Compensated absences.............. $ 224,000 $ 72,000 §$ (56,000) $ 240,000 $ 60,000
Other postemployment benefits... .. 229,152 198,254 (163,883) 263,523 -
Net pension liability..................... 1,178,000 310,000 (305,000) 1,183,000 -
Bonds payable............ccooeeei e 25,475,334 2,649,200 (2,459,183) 25,665,351 2,565,586
Totle oo oo % 27,108,486 $  3,229454 $  (2,984,066) $§ 27,351,874 $__ 2,625.586
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NOTE 9 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

GASB #54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable.
Nonspendable fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted
to cash or they are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid
items, inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund. The City has reported principal portions of
endowment funds as nonspendable.

In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB #54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.

e Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.

e Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision making authority. The City’s highest level of decision making authority is City Council.

e Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.

e Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

As of June 30, 2017, the governmental fund balances consisted of the following:

Hurld/ Wyman Nonmajor Total
School Library Governmental Governmental
General Project Construction Funds Funds
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal............cocoeeiivnes $ - $ - % - $ 3,197,672 $ 3,197,672
Restricted for:
Municipal federal and state grants.............. - - - 381,213 381,213
Education federal and state grants.............. - - - 2,033,765 2,033,765
Receipts reserved for appropriation funds.... - - - 1,637,599 1,637,599
Municipal revolving funds..................c - - - 807,743 807,743
School IUNCh... ..o e - - - 622,076 622,076
Infrastructure fund........... e e - - - 777,075 777,075
Other special revenue............cocceeconneenee - - - 2,345,249 2,345,249
Other capital projects..........ovvv s - - - 339,604 339,694
Library trust funds - special revenue funds... - - - 545,321 545,321
Library trust funds - permanent funds.......... - - - 8,038,776 8,038,778
Cemetery perpetual care funds.................. - - - 511,838 511,838
Hurld/Wyman School Project..................... - 1,134,744 - - 1,134,744
Committed to:
Affordable housing stabilization fund........... 3,354,586 - - 3,354,586
General government........c...cooevveveeeenee 1,193,123 - - - 1,193,123
Public safety.......ccooovviviemeniien 108,520 - - - 108,520
PUblic WOPKS.....ccvveveiieconicecin v 130,101 - - - 130,101
Human services................ 17,795 - - - 17,795
Culture and recreation................ccveeinnnnenns 1,600 - - - 1,600
Employee benefits.......... 507,900 - - - 607,900
Capital outlay..........coovvieiien i 4,168,721 - - - 4,168,721
Debt service - interest..........ccooooeeieinininnne 29,000 - - 29,000
Assigned to:
General government.... 506,658 - - - 505,658
Public safety.............. 34,704 - - - 34,704
Education........ 315,292 - - - 315,292
Public works........ e 39,462 - - - 39,462
Human Services...........oeevvevenes N 163 - - - 153
Culture and recreation. 3,159 - - - 3,159
Unassigned..........ccoenn 37,720,090 - (225,798) (25,059) 37,469,233
Total Fund BalanCes.......c..oreevveeenrneecivnisneronsns $ 48,129,864 $ 1,134,744 $ (225,798) $ 21,212,962 $ 70,251,772
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Massachusetts General Law Ch.40 §5B allows for the establishment of Stabilization funds for one or more
different purposes. The creation of a fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body and must clearly
define the purpose of the fund. Any change to the purpose of the fund along with any additions to or
appropriations from the fund requires a two-thirds vote of the legislative body.

At year end, the general stabilization fund totaled $11,752,695 and is reported as unassigned fund balance within
the general fund; and the affordable housing stabilization fund totaled $3,354,586 and is reported as committed
fund balance within the general fund.

NOTE 10 - RISK FINANCING

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three years.

The City is part of a premium-based self-insurance group which insures for health insurance, workers’
compensation, and other insurance for employees and retirees, as well as general and personal liability insurance
through the Massachusetts Inter-Local Insurance Association (MIIA). The City essentially transfers risk through
payment of its annual assessment which is adjusted according to the City's experience history.

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Descriptions

The City is a member of the Woburn Contributory Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 2 member units. The System is administered by
five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except for current teachers and
retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan.
The System is a component unit and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary fund financial statements.

The City is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing multi-employer
defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on behalf of
municipal teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is
responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers
certified teachers in cities (except Boston), regional school districts, charter schools, educational collaboratives
and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity and the audited financial report
may be obtained by visiting http://www.mass.gov/osc/publications-and-reports/financial-reports/.

Special Funding Situation

The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially
determined employer contributions on behalf of the City to the MTRS. Therefore, the City is considered to be in a
special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor in MTRS. Since the City does not contribute directly to
MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided contributions have
been allocated based on each employer's covered payroll to the total covered payroll of employers in MTRS as of
the measurement date of June 30, 2016. The City’s portion of the collective pension expense, contributed by the
Commonwealth, of $12,295,098 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenue and pension
benefits in the current year. The portion of the Commonwealth’s coliective net pension liability associated with the

City is $120,532,427 as of the measurement date.
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Benefits Provided

Both Systems provide retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor exceptions, uniform from system
to system. The Systems provide retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's highest
three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For persons who became members on or after April 2,
2012, average salary is the average annual rate of regular compensation received during the five consecutive
years that produce the highest average, or, if greater, during the last five years (whether or not consecutive)
preceding retirement. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, level of
compensation, and group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable service. There
were no changes in benefit terms that affected the measurement of the total pension liability at December 31,
2016.

Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are extended to
eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following retirement.

Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth's state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the
System.

At December 31, 2016, the System’s membership consists of the following:

ACHVE MEMIDEIS. .. ittt e e e e e e e s 611
INACHVE MEMDEIS. .. oottt e it et et s et e re e ven varean e e 101
Disabled MEMDEIS. .. .. it ittt et e e e evi et 35
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits......... 406

Lo | PO PP 1,153

Contributions

Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan members are
required to contribute at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with an additional 2%
contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is keyed to the date upon which
an employee's membership commences. The member units are required to pay into the System a legislatively
mandated actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on active current
payroll. The total member units’ contribution for the year ended December 31, 2016, was $6,300,000, 20.75% of
covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with plan member contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City’s proportionate share of the required contribution was
$6,097,000 which equaled its actual contribution.
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Pension Liabilities

The components of the net pension liability of the participating member units at June 30, 2017, were as follows:

Total pension liability............cc.ccooviiiiiiiiiniinns $ 212,390,756
The pension plan's fiduciary net position.............. (130,927,920)
The net pension liability.............cooooiiiiiii s $ 81,462,836

The pension plan's fidicuary net position as
a percentage of the total pension liability............ 61.64%

At June 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $78,889,000 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016. Accordingly, update
procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date. The City's proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members. At December 31, 2016, the City's
proportion was 96.84%, which increased by 0.53% from its proportion measured at December 31, 2015.

Pension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $12,552,000. At June 30, 2017, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions of $15,069,000 and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions of $1,272,000.

The balances of deferred outflows and (inflows) at June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows Inflows
Deferred category of Resources  of Resources Total
Differences between expected and actual experience....... $ 2,052,000 $ - $ 2,052,000
Changes of assumptions.............cociii i 5,078,000 - 5,078,000
Difference between projected and actual earnings........... 7,681,000 (1,272,000) 6,409,000
Changes in proportion...........ocovieiiiiiiien e 258,000 - 258,000
Total Deferred Outfiows/(Inflows) of Resources............... $ 15,069,000 $ (1,272,000) $ 13,797,000

The deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2018, i e eeee . $ 4,966,000
2019 4,966,000
2020.....c i 4,119,000
2027 i (254,000)
Total...c..ooeeeee e e $ 13,787,000
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the January 1, 2016, actuarial valuation was determined

using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to
December 31, 2016:

Valuationdate..........coveii i en January 1, 2016

Actuarial cost method..................l Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method.

Amortization method..............o.ool Increase at 4.0% per year.

Remaining amortization period................ 19 years at January 1, 2016, closed.

Asset valuation method..................... L. Assets are reported at fair market value.

Projected salary increases...................... 2% increasing to an ultimate rate of 4% over 3 years.

Cost of living adjustments....................... 3.0% of the lesser of the pension amount and
$12,000 per year.

Rates of retirement............ccocooiiiiiininns Varies based upon age for general employees, police

and fire employees.

Rates of disability............... FUPPR - SR Varies based upon age for general employees, police
and fire employees.

Mortality Rates............cooceviiiieniiinins The RP-2000 Employee Mortality Table projected generationally
with Scale BB for males and females.

Investment rate of return/Discount rate...... 7.75% per year.

Investment policy

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the
Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a
fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target
asset allocation as of December 31, 2016 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected  Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return Asset Allocation
BQUILY......eees e e e 8.46% 46.46%
Fixed INCOME....oeeeriii e e 1.83% 10.05%
Alternatives.................... e 7.92% 43.49%

100.00%

Rate of return

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net of pension plan investment expense, was 9.09%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and
that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rafe

The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75%) or
1-percentage-point higher (8.75%) than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.75%) (7.75%) (8.75%)
The City's proportionate share of the
net pension liability...............ccooeeeeiinnn $ 101,349,000 $ 78,889,000 $ 59,808,000

Changes of Assumptions
There were no changes of assumptions.
Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions.
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Plan Description — The City of Woburn administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). The
Plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the City’s group health
insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated between the City and the
unions representing City employees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. The

Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

Funding Policy — Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the City and union representatives. The
required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. Depending on the plan selected, the
City contributes various percentages of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and
their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining portion of their premium costs.

During 2017, the City pre-funded future OPEB liabilities totaling $750,000 by contributing funds to the Other
Postemployment Benefits Fund in excess of the pay-as-you-go required contribution. These funds are reported
within the Fiduciary Funds financial statements. As of June 30, 2017, the balance of this fund totaled $4,397,741.
The City has not formally adopted a policy of pre-funding future OPEB liabilities.

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net
of investment expense, was 11.63%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net
of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Plan Membership — The following table represents the Plan’s membership at June 30, 2017:

Active Members..........c.cooiiiin 1,340
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits..........cocooiiii 728
T0tal e 2,068

Components of OPEB Liability — The following table represents the components of the Plan’s OPEB liability as of
June 30, 2017:

Total OPEB liability........co.ooivv i $ 258,785,000
Less: OPEB plan's fiduciary net position................c.coiiiiiiniinns (4,398,000)
Net OPEB liability............ooo oo e e s $ 254,387,000

The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the total OPEB liability.......................oo . 1.70%
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Significant Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2016, actuarial
valuation was determined by using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods including the
measurement date that was updated to June 30, 2017, to be in accordance with GASB #74,

Valuation date..............c..eev....n.. January 1, 2016
Actuarial cost method................... Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost
Asset valuation method................ Market Value
Single equivalent discount rate....... 3.82% per year, net of investment expenses.
Salary increases......................... 3.75% for non-teachers. Teachers increases are based on service.
Healthcare cost trend rate............. 9.0% initially decreasing to 5.0% over 26 years.
Mortality:
ACHVES. - The RP-2000 Mortality tables (sex-distinct) for Employees projected using

generational mortality and scale BB.

Retirees.......vvvvoeoveveieiiennanven.. The RP-2000 Mortality tables (sex-distinct) for Healthy Annuitants projected
using generational mortality and scale BB.

Disabled.........oevvooiviovsveenn.... The RP-2000 Mortality tables (sex-distinct) for Healthy Annuitants projected
using generational mortality and scale BB. Set forward 2 years.

Investment policy

The City’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the City
Council by a majority vote of its members. The OPEB plan’s assets are managed on a total return basis with a
long-term objective of achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the OPEB
plan. The long-term real rate of return on OPEB investments was determined using the Town'’s investment policy.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real of returns (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return of by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The System’s expected future real rate of return is added
to the expected inflation to produce the long-term expected nominal rate of return. Best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30,
2017, are summarized in the following table.

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return

Domestic Equities............... 35.00% 5.05%

Internationai Equities........... 20.00% 5.80%

Domestic Bonds................. 20.00% 2.47%

International Bonds............. 5.00% 2.40%

Alternatives.........ccoeeeveivnes 20.00% 4.80%
100.00%
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Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.82% as of June 30, 2017. The

discount rate is a blend of the long-term expected rate of return of 7.50% on OPEB Trust Fund assets and a yield
or index rate of 3.58% for 20 year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rate of AA/Aa

or higher. The blending is based on the sufficiency of projected assets to make projected benefit payments.

Sensitivity of the net position liability to changes in the discount rate — The following table presents the net other
postemployment benefit liability and service cost, calculated using the discount rate of 3.82%, as well as what the
net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1- percentage-point lower 2.82% or 1-percentage-point higher 4.82% than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.82%) (3.82%) (4.82%)
Net OPEB liability............ccccco oo $ 299,262,000 $ 254,387,000 $ 219,036,000

Sensitivity of the net position liability to changes in the healthcare trend - The following table presents the net
other postemployment benefit liability and service cost, calculated using the current healthcare trend rate, as well
as what the net other postemployment benefit liability and service cost would be if it were calculated using a
healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability...................... $ 211,639,000 $ 254,387,000 $ _ 310,664,000

Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions.

Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation — The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding

that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the City's net OPEB obligation are summarized in the table that follows:

Annual required contribution............ccocooi $ 17,949,495
Interest on net OPEB obligation...........c.cocoieiiien 2,479,790
Adjustment to annual required contribution.................... (2,446,915)

Annual OPEB cost (EXPENSE).......ccvievivrrererunenrnas 17,982,370
Contributions made........ccocoveevviiiiiiiiiii i (9,059,355)
Increase in net OPEB obligation.............cocoviiinne 8,923,015
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year.....................cce. 57,006,668
Net OPEB obligation-end of year..............cocceeiiiniinns $ 65,929,683
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The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2017 and the previous two years was as follows:

Percentage of
Year Annual Annuai OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost  Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2017 $ 17,982,370 50% $ 65,929,683
6/30/2016 16,992,814 42% 57,006,668
6/30/2015 13,320,264 59% 47,136,735

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$211,241,434. The City has funded $3,070,278, which resulted in a funded ratio of 1.5% and an unfunded
actuarial accrued liability for benefits totaling $208,171,156. The net position of the OPEB trust fund totaled

$4,397,741 as of June 30, 2017.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation, actuarial liabilities were determined using the projected unit credit cost
method. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.35% investment return assumption, which is based on the
expected yield on the assets of the City, calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date,
and an annual medical/drug cost trend rate of 9.0% decreasing to an uitimate level of 5.0% and included a 4%
inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized using a 30 year closed amortization method, with amortization
payments increasing at 3% per year. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2017, is 29 years.

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

The City participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited in
accordance with the provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards through June 30, 2017, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if

any, to be immaterial.
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Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2017,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2017.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $ 27.8 million for the
Hurld/Wyman elementary school building project.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $27.5 million for the Library
Design and Reconstruction project.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6.4 million for sewer infiltration
and inflow. The purpose of this project is to reduce inflow and infiltration of the sewer system.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6 million for the installation of
water meters. This project involves installing new water meters for all residential and commercial properties in the
City.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $6.8 million for surface drainage
projects. The purpose of the projects is to improve management of surface run-off throughout the City.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $1.6 million for water
infrastructure improvements.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $1.9 million for land acquisition.

The City has entered into contracts, or is planning to enter into contracts, totaling $1.3 million for ladder truck.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 27, 2018, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
NOTE 16 — IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During 2017, the following GASB pronouncements were implemented:
o GASB Statement #74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.
The basic financial statements, related notes and required supplementary information were changed to

provide additional disclosure on the Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund.

e GASB Statement #77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. This pronouncement did not impact the basic
financial statements.

« GASB Statement #78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension
Plans. The basic financial statements and related notes were updated to be in compliance with this
pronouncement.
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GASB Statement #80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an amendment of GASB
Statement #14. This pronouncement did not impact the basic financial statements.

GASB Statement #82, Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statements #67, #68, and #73. The
basic financial statements and related notes were updated to be in compliance with this pronouncement.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:

The GASB issued Statement #75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, which is required to be implemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, which is required to be
imptemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, which is required to be
implemented in 2019.

The GASB issued Statement #84, Fiduciary Activities, which is required to be implemented in 2020.
The GASB issued Statement #85, Omnibus 2017, which is required to be implemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, which is required to be
implemented in 2018.

The GASB issued Statement #87, Leases, which is required to be implemented in 2021.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts
Amounts Current Year
Carried Forward Initial Criginal Final
From Prior Year Budget Budget Budget
REVENUES:
Real estate and personal property taxes,
net of tax refunds..........ccoevvieinicccen s $ - 3 96,271,532 § 96,271,532 $ 96,271,532
TaXHENS. et e - - -
Motor vehicle excise taxes.......cocovieciiciiiiiiniinnnnn. - 6,278,200 6,278,200 6,278,200
Hotel/motel tax.........cccviiiiviiiii e, - 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
MEAIS 18X, .. e et eieie e ee e e e na e - 900,000 900,000 900,000
Penalties and interest ontaxes..........ccoccoeovinininne - 500,000 500,000 500,000
Intergovernmental..............ccooeviinns - 15,324,157 15,324,157 15,324,157
Departmental and other..................coennnn - 2,205,000 2,205,000 2,205,000
Investment income - 400,000 400,000 400,000
TOTALREVENUES........coiv i - 124,878,889 124,878,889 124,878,889
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government...........c.c.covveineeiiniininnnns 1,221,262 7,141,627 8,362,889 5,794,860
Public safety.........ccoi v 102,551 16,047,902 16,150,453 17,443,432
EdUcation........ccovviiiiiiiiiie e 205,369 58,082,035 58,287,404 60,355,520
Public Works.......coovvieeiiir 410,147 7,873,849 8,283,996 8,601,109
HUMEN SEIVICES. . evviieeieeiieieeeveeeeerecnneaeee 45,936 1,112,110 1,158,046 1,495,902
Culture and recreation.............ccocvevveerieaeieennnnss 163,598 1,937,194 2,100,792 2,154,426
Pension benefits.........ccooiveiiiiiii e - 6,101,253 6,101,253 6,101,253
Employee benefits............coccceeviiiviiinii, 700,000 19,878,852 20,578,852 21,328,852
State and county charges - 3,521,053 3,521,053 3,521,053
Capital outlay..........coveeiiviiiiiinnii e 3,606,714 - 3,606,714 6,187,937
Debt service:
PrinCIPal.......cvoveeeieeiiiiii i - 2,231,198 2,231,198 2,865,000
INEEIESE. ... iit e et 67,194 150,000 217,194 1,480,076
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. .....cooiiiiiiiieieens 6,522,771 124,077,073 130,599,844 137,329,420
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES......cocioiiiiiitiiiiceeeei e (6,522,771) 801,816 (5,720,955) (12,450,531)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
TrANSTEIS IM.uvvtivveereieei et ee e eceee e - 1,486,111 1,486,111 5,066,602
Transfers out - (1,839,593) (1,839,593) (1,904,668)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES).....covviviiiieiieiiinen, - (353,482) (353,482) 3,161,934
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE.........c..ccoveviiinnnn, (6,522,771) 448,334 (6,074,437) (9,288,597)
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, Beginning of year....... - 26,677,379 26,677,379 32,405,319
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE, End of year............... $ (6,522,771) $ 27,125713 $ 20,602,942 $ 23,116,722

See notes to required supplementary information.

City of Woburn, Massachuselts 64 Required Supplementary Information



Actual Amounts Variance
Budgetary Carried Forward to Final
Amounts To Next Year Budget

$ 97,429,611 § - $ 1,158,079
533,118 - 533,118
7,011,959 - 733,759
3,182,058 - 182,058
1,021,682 - 121,682
504,770 - 4,770
156,910,506 - 586,349
2,541,489 - 336,489
632,977 - 232,977
128,768,170 - 3,889,281
3,833,140 1,698,781 262,939
16,979,905 143,224 320,303
60,040,228 315,292 -
8,724,476 169,563 (292,930)
1,381,055 17,948 96,899
2,107,433 4,759 42,234
6,098,931 - 2,322
20,647,312 507,900 173,640
3,521,053 - -
1,954,804 4,168,721 64,412
2,865,000 - -
1,369,899 29,000 81,177
129,523,236 7,055,188 750,996
(755,066) (7,055,188) 4,640,277
5,066,602 - -
(1,904,668) - -
3,161,934 - -
2,406,868 (7,055,188) 4,640,277
32,405,319 - -
$ 34,812,187 $  (7,055,188) $ 4,640,277
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Pension Plan Schedules —
Retirement System

The Pension Plan’s Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios presents multi-year
trend information on the net pension liability and related ratios.

The Pension Plan's Schedule of Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the required and actual
contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Pension Plan’s Schedule of Investment Return presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted
investment return on retirement assets, net of investment expense.

The schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information is
presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2015 2016

Total pension Iiability:

SBIVICE COSL. .o e eeeeeeeeeear e v ss e aeeeset et ran e ceeeeaeasanaeeasaees 3,301,279 § 3,556,688 $ 3,796,168

Interest... . 14,163,908 15,138,154 15,740,525

Changes in beneftterms . - - -

Differences between expected and actual expenence ................. - 3,631,873 -

Changes in assumptions... 6,330,561 3,810,330

Benefit payments, |nclud|ng refunds of employee contrlbutlons ..... (11,623,361) (12,132,587) (12,670,224)
Net change in total pension liability.............co. i 12,172,387 13,904,458 6,866,469
Total pension liability, beginning...............coovvi 179,447,442 191,619,829 205,524,287
Total pension liability, ending (@)..........ccooreiein i $ 191,619,829 § 205,524,287 $ 212,390,756
Plan fiduciary net position:

Member CONBUIONS ... ... veeereeereecre e eee e erensreere e s seenecenee B 2,818,594 % 2,889,024 $ 2,980,864

Employer contributions... ..........oou v 5,509,350 6,000,000 6,300,000

Net investment income (10SS). ... 7,589,834 (1,511,397) 11,076,789

Retirement benefits and refunds............coooeiiin (11,623,361) (12,132,587) (12,670,224)

Administrative BXPENSES..........covvi e e (502,889) (567,097) (656,009)

Other EXPENSES. .. .eeueereiee e iee it i e s e e e s e 275,496 (48,597) (76,343)
Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position................ccoecoeiiiees 4,067,024 (5,369,754) 6,955,077
Fiduciary net position at beginning of year.............c.coci i 125,275,573 129,342,597 123,972,843
Fiduciary net position atend of year (B)..........ccccoovivmine i § 129,342,597 $ 123,972,843 $ 130,927,920
Net pension liability - ending (&) = (b)......ccocsmmmiiaisannmnnniiennn. $ 62,277,232 $ 81,551,444 $ 81,462,836
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pENSION HADIMILY. .. ... .veiee e 67.50% 60.32% 61.64%
Covered-employee payroll........c.ooooiiiiiie i $ 30,103,112 % 29,187,382 $ 30,354,877
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee

PAYTON. .. .ot ceeiee e cee e e et e e e 206.88% 279.41% 268.37%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2015 2016
Actuarially determined contribution (@)..........ccccoceivinnieinien e $ 5,509,350 $ 6,000,000 $§ 6,300,000
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined CoOntrBULION. .. ...veeiir e (5,509,350) (6,000,000) (6,300,000}

Contribution deficiency (EXCESS)... .cucerrrrererrmrirraiiieri e s 9 - § - $ -

Covered-employee PAYION........cccoeruraeeeireveriiesre s estaes et sne e e een b ene § 30,103,112 § 29,187,382 $ 30,354,877
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

EMPIOYEE PAYIOIL... ... vever ittt et ie e e st e e 18.30% 20.56% 20.75%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURN
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2015 2016

Annual money-weighted rate of return,

net of investment exXpense.............ovvveeii 6.14% -1.19% 9.09%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

The annual money-weighted rate of return has been calculated by
Conduent Human Resource Services, the System's actuary.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Pension Plan Schedules — City

The Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information
on the City’s net pension liability and related ratios.

The Schedule of City's Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the City’s required and actual
contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers
Contributory Retirement System presents multi-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the City along with related ratios.

These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

City's proportion of the net pension liability (assef).....................

City's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)..........

City's covered employee payroll...............

Net pension liability as a percentage of City's covered-employee

PAYIOll .o

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
total pension liability..............cccooeieiis

of the

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.

Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for

which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2015 2016
96.34% 96.31% 96.84%
59,998,000 $ 78,542,000 $ 78,889,000
29,001,000 $ 28,110,000 $ 29,396,000
206.88% 279.41% 268.37%
67.50% 60.32% 61.64%
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SCHEDULE OF CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS
WOBURN CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2015 2016 2017
Actuarially determined contribution (@)...............cccoccvivinnn $ 5,305,862 $ 5,777,000 $ 6,097,000
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution..........coccoii i (5,305,862) (5,777,000) (6,097,000)
Contribution deficiency (excess).................... $ -3 -3 -
City's covered-employee payroll.............cocceeeeeerccanininiiniin . 8 29,001,000 $ 28,110,000 $ 29,396,000
Contributions as a percentage of City covered-
employee payroll........c.ccooeo v 18.30% 20.55% 20.74%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to
make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which
creates a special funding situation. Since the City does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no
net pension liability to recognize. This schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the
collective net pension liability that is associated with the City; the portion of the collective pension
expense as both a revenue and pension expense recognized by the City; and the Plan's fiduciary net

position as a percentage of the total liability.

Commonwealth's City's Expense
100% Share of the and Revenue
Net Pension Recognized for Plan Fiduciary Net
Liability the Position as a
Associated with Commonwealth's Percentage of the
Fiscal Year the City Support Total Liability
2017 e D 120,532,427 $ 12,295,098 $ 52.73%
2016, e e 105,773,079 8,579,138 55.38%
2015, e 83,789,331 5,821,247 61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for

which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment
Benefit Plan Schedules

GASB Statement #74 Schedules

The Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios presents
multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability, changes in the Plan’s net position, and
ending net OPEB liability. 1t also demonstrates the Plan’s net position as a percentage of the total liability and the
Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll.

The Schedule of the City’s Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the City’s actual contributions to
the other postemployment benefit plan and related ratios.

The Schedule of Investment Return presents multi-year trend information on the money-weighted investment
return on the Plan’s other postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

GASB Statement #45 Schedules

The Schedule of Funding progress compares, over time, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits with the
actuaria! value of accumulated plan assets.

The Schedule of Employer Contributions compares, overtime, the annual required contributions to the actual
contributions made.

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
CITY'S NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

June 30, 2017

Total OPEB Liability
SEIVICE COSE .. oon i ittt et ettt e $ 8,202,000
13 = =] T O PRSPPI PR 9,650,000
Changes of benefit terms.........coovoiiiiiiii -
Differences between expected and actual experience...........c..oo i -
Changes of @sSUMPLIONS.........c.oiitiiiiee e -
Benefit PaymMENtS...... ..ot e e (6,905,000)
Net change in total OPEB liability.............coooivmi 10,947,000
Total OPEB liahility-beginning.........ccoooiiiii 247,838,000

Total OPEB liability-nding (2).........coovvieeerevereeeeciceeceicsereenniee e 9 258,785,000

Plan fiduciary net position

ContribUIONS-BMPIOYET ...t e e $ 7,655,000

Net investment INCOME. ... .c.coi vt e et e e s 408,000

Benefit PAYMENTS. .. .....u ittt e e (6,905,000)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position.............coccoiiii 1,158,000

Plan fiduciary net position-beginning.............cooviiii 3,240,000

Plan fiduciary net position-ending (B).............coveecoirireiieiiiee e 4,398,000
City's net OPEB liability-ending (@)-(b).......ccceremrmrinimnnnniiiinin, $ 254,387,000

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability........ccooiee e e 1.70%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Untit a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years
for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

June 30, 2017

Actuarially determined contribution..............o.iii $ 17,949,000
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribUtioN. .. ... ... i (7,655,000)
Contribution defiCiEnCy (EXCESS). .. uviircieiiiitiirree i e et e e $ 10,294,000

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

June 30, 2017

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of INVeStMENt EXPENSE... .. ciii it e 11.63%

Note: This schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those
years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Projected Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (©) (B-A)IC)
7/1/2015 $ 3,070,278 § 211,241,434 $ 208,171,156 1.5% $ NA N/A
6/30/2013 - 161,311,012 161,311,012 0.0% N/A N/A
6/30/2011 - 243,982 491 243,982,491 0.0% N/A N/A
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Annual Actual
Year Required Contributions Percentage
Ended Contribution Made Contributed
6/30/2017 $ 17,949,495 $ 9,059,355 50%
6/30/2016 16,910,146 7,122,881 42%
6/30/2015 12,866,510 7,836,230 61%
6/30/2014 12,338,923 8,244,570 67%
6/30/2013 16,800,797 7,327,979 44%
6/30/2012 16,026,905 6,664,564 42%

See notes to required supplementary information.
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
SCHEDULE OF ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Actuarial Methods:

Valuation date...........ccoceviieeeeeeeeiceieeiceeneeen July 1, 2015
Actuarial cost method.............c..oi Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method.............ccoocoveveveeeeeeeeeee ... 30 year closed amortization method
with payments increasing at 3.0% per year
Remaining amortization period................c..enn 30 years as of July 1, 2015

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment rate of return.........ccooceveeiveveeeneeene. 4.35%
Medical costtrend rate.............cccoovivie 9.0% decreasing to an ultimate level of 5.0%
Inflation assuMPoN........c.ccvovee e iveniienennenn. 4.0%

Plan Membership:

Current retirees, beneficiaries, and dependents.... 1,039
Current active members............ccoccoeiii e 1,065
TOtal .. oo 2,094

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information _ _ _ Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE A - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

1. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by the Council. The Mayor presents
an annual budget to the Council, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing sources and
recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The Council, which has full authority to amend
and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases or transfers between and within departments subsequent to the approval of the annual budget, requires
majority Council approval via a supplemental appropriation or Council order.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each year. Others are continuing
appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior year be carried
forward and made available for spending in the current year. These carry forwards are included as part of the
subsequent year's original budget.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized
for an appropriation account. However, the payment of debt service is statutorily required, regardless of whether
such amounts are appropriated. Additionally, expenditures for disasters, natural or otherwise, and final judgments
may exceed the level of spending authorized by majority vote of the Council.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original
2017 approved budget authorized approximately $132.4 million in appropriations, carryforwards, and other
amounts to be raised. During 2017, the Council also approved supplemental appropriations totaling
approximately $6.8 million. The change is primarily due to increases in appropriations for public safety,
education, capital outlay and debt service.

The City Auditor has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control is
exercised through the City's accounting system.

2. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2017, is
presented below:

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis...............ccoooeiieiiinn $ 2,406,868

Perspective difference:
Activity of the stabilization fund recorded in the

general fund for GAAP..........cooiii i 167,396
Basis of accounting differences:
Net change in recording 60-day receipts................coe i 146,000
Net change in recording tax refunds payable...................c. oo (133,413)
Net change in recording accrued payroll.............c..coove i (138,014)
Net difference in the recognition of revenues..............ccocceiiie e (274,530}
Increase in revenues due to on-behalf payments.....................os 12,295,098
Increase in expenditures due to on-behalf payments...................c... (12,295,098)
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis..............cccoei v $ 2,174,307
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NOTE B — PENSION PLAN
Pension Plan Schedules — Retirement System

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios includes the detailed changes in the
System's total pension liability, changes in the System’s net position, and the ending net pension liability. 1t also
demonstrates the plan's net position as a percentage of the total pension liability and the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll.

Schedule of Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the System’s funding

schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The
appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. Employers may choose to pay the entire appropriation in
July at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual employer contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”.
The appropriations are allocated amongst employers based on covered payroll.

Schedule of Investment Return

The money-weighted rate of return is calculated as the internal rate of return on pension plan investments, net of
pension plan investment expense. A money weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of
pension plan investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. Inputs to the money
weighted rate of return calculation are determined monthly.

Pension Plan Schedules — City

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

The Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated percentage of the
net pension liability (asset), the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the covered employee payroll.
It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the net pension liability as a

percentage of covered payroll.

Schedule of City's Contributions

Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the System’s funding

schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The
appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. The City may choose to pay the entire appropriation in July
at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”.

Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liabilities

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which creates a special funding
situation. Since the City does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
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schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is associated with
the City; the portion of the collective pension expense as both revenue and pension expense recognized by the
City; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions.

Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions.

NOTE C - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (Plan). The plan provides lifetime
healthcare and prescription drug benefits for eligible retirees and their spouses through MIIA, which is a premium
based self-insurance group that covers both active and retired members, including teachers.

The Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

A. The Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios

The Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios presents
multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability, changes in the Plan’s net position, and
ending net OPEB liability. It also demonstrates the Plan’s net position as a percentage of the total liability and the
Plan’s net other postemployment benefit liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll.

B. Schedule of the City's Contributions

The Schedule of the City’s Contributions includes the City's annual required contribution to the Plan, along with
the contribution made in relation to the actuarially determined contribution and the covered employee payroll. The
City is not required to fully fund this contribution. It also demonstrates the contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll.

C. Schedule of Investment Return

The Schedule of Investment Return includes the money-weighted investment return on the Plan’s other
postemployment assets, net of investment expense.

The City

The City currently finances its other postemployment benefits on a combined pre-funded and pay-as-you-go
basis. As a result, the funded ratio (actuarial value of assets expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued
liability) is 1.5%. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the City has recorded its OPEB cost
equal to the actuarial determined annual required contribution (ARC) which includes the normal cost of providing
benefits for the year and a component for the amortization of the total unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the
plan.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
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employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

A. Schedule of Funding Progress

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information which compares, over time, the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits with the actuarial value of accumulated plan assets.

B. Schedule of Employer Contributions

The Schedule of Employer Contributions presents multiyear trend information for the City’s required and actual
contributions relating to the plan.

C. Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions presents factors that significantly affect the identification of
trends in the amounts reported.

D. Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions.

E. Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions.
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